
           

TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL  

Monday, OCTOBER 9, 2017
 

 

JUANITA POHL CENTER  

8513 SW Tualatin Road  

Tualatin, OR 97062  

WORK SESSION - Cancelled
BUSINESS MEETING begins at 7:00 p.m.

     Mayor Lou Ogden

Council President Joelle Davis

 Councilor Robert Kellogg            Councilor Frank Bubenik
 Councilor Paul Morrison             Councilor Nancy Grimes

Councilor Jeff DeHaan
 

Welcome! By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process
of representative government. To encourage that participation, the City Council has specified a
time for your comments on its agenda, following Announcements, at which time citizens may
address the Council concerning any item not on the agenda or to request to have an item
removed from the consent agenda. If you wish to speak on a item already on the agenda,
comment will be taken during that item. Please fill out a Speaker Request Form and submit it to
the Recording Secretary. You will be called forward during the appropriate time; each speaker
will be limited to three minutes, unless the time limit is extended by the Mayor with the consent
of the Council.

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred
to on this agenda are available for review on the City website at 
www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings, the Library located at 18878 SW Martinazzi Avenue, and on
file in the Office of the City Manager for public inspection. Any person with a question
concerning any agenda item may call Administration at 503.691.3011 to make an inquiry
concerning the nature of the item described on the agenda.

In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to
participate in this meeting, you should contact Administration at 503.691.3011. Notification
thirty-six (36) hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to
assure accessibility to this meeting.

Council meetings are televised live the day of the meeting through Washington County Cable
Access Channel 28. The replay schedule for Council meetings can be found at www.tvctv.org.
Council meetings can also be viewed by live streaming video on the day of the meeting at 
www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings.

Your City government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend the City of Tualatin
Council meetings often.

 PROCESS FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings
http://www.tvctv.org/
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings


 PROCESS FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS
A legislative public hearing is typically held on matters which affect the general welfare of the
entire City rather than a specific piece of property.

1. Mayor opens the public hearing and identifies the subject.
2. A staff member presents the staff report.
3. Public testimony is taken.
4. Council then asks questions of staff, the applicant, or any member of the
    public who testified.
5. When the Council has finished questions, the Mayor closes the public
    hearing.
6. When the public hearing is closed, Council will then deliberate to a decision
    and a motion will be made to either approve, deny, or continue the public
    hearing.
 

PROCESS FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS
A quasi-judicial public hearing is typically held for annexations, planning district changes,
conditional use permits, comprehensive plan changes, and appeals from subdivisions,
partititions and architectural review.

1. Mayor opens the public hearing and identifies the case to be considered.
2. A staff member presents the staff report.
3. Public testimony is taken:

a) In support of the application
b) In opposition or neutral

4. Council then asks questions of staff, the applicant, or any member of the
    public who testified.
5. When Council has finished its questions, the Mayor closes the public
    hearing.
6. When the public hearing is closed, Council will then deliberate to a decision
    and a motion will be made to either approve, approve with conditions, or 
    deny the application, or continue the public hearing. 
 

TIME LIMITS FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS
The purpose of time limits on public hearing testimony is to provide all provided all interested
persons with an adequate opportunity to present and respond to testimony. All persons providing
testimony shall be limited to 3 minutes, subject to the right of the Mayor to amend or waive the
time limits.

EXECUTIVE SESSION INFORMATION
An Executive Session is a meeting of the City Council that is closed to the public to allow the City
Council to discuss certain confidential matters. An Executive Session may be conducted as a
separate meeting or as a portion of the regular Council meeting. No final decisions or actions
may be made in Executive Session. In many, but not all, circumstances, members of the news
media may attend an Executive Session.

The City Council may go into Executive Session for certain reasons specified by Oregon law.
These reasons include, but are not limited to: ORS 192.660(2)(a) employment of personnel;
ORS 192.660(2)(b) dismissal or discipline of personnel; ORS 192.660(2)(d) labor relations; ORS
192.660(2)(e) real property transactions; ORS 192.660(2)(f) information or records exempt by
law from public inspection; ORS 192.660(2)(h) current litigation or litigation likely to be filed; and
ORS 192.660(2)(i) employee performance of chief executive officer.

 



 

OFFICIAL AGENDA OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR OCTOBER
9, 2017

           

A. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance

  

 

B. ANNOUNCEMENTS   

 

1. Tualatin Youth Advisory Council Update for October 2017
 

2. West Coast Giant Pumpkin Regatta Announcement
 

C. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This section of the agenda allows anyone to address the Council regarding any issue not on the
agenda, or to request to have an item removed from the consent agenda. The duration for each
individual speaking is limited to 3 minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers
will be referred to City staff for follow-up and report at a future meeting.

  

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one vote. The Mayor will ask Councilors if there is anyone
who wishes to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for discussion and consideration. If you
wish to request an item to be removed from the consent agenda you should do so during the Citizen
Comment section of the agenda. The matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered
individually at the end of this Agenda under, Items Removed from the Consent Agenda. The entire
Consent Agenda, with the exception of items removed from the Consent Agenda to be discussed, is
then voted upon by roll call under one motion.

  

 

1. Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the Work Sessions and Regular Meetings
of September 11 and 25, 2017

 

2. Consideration of Resolution No. 5342-17 Awarding Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Outside
Agency Grant Funds to Provide Social Services to the Citizens of Tualatin

 

3. Consideration of Resolution No. 5341-17 Authorizing an Intergovernmental
Agreement between the City of Tualatin and Washington County, Oregon for Fiscal
Year 2016 Urban Areas Security Initiative (UASI) Grant Funds

 

E. GENERAL BUSINESS
If you wish to speak on a general business item please fill out a Speaker Request Form and you will
be called forward during the appropriate item. The duration for each individual speaking is limited to 3
minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers will be referred to City staff for
follow-up and report at a future meeting.

  

 

1. Consideration of Ordinance No. 1403-17 Regulating Mobile Food Units and Creating
Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 9-09. 

 

2. Consideration of Ordinance No. 1404-17 to Extend the Temporary Mobile Food Unit



2. Consideration of Ordinance No. 1404-17 to Extend the Temporary Mobile Food Unit
Regulations to December 31, 2018

 

F. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
Items removed from the Consent Agenda will be discussed individually at this time. The Mayor may
impose a time limit on speakers addressing these issues.

  

 

G. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COUNCILORS   

 

H. ADJOURNMENT   

 



   
City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/09/2017  
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Tualatin Youth Advisory Council Update

ANNOUNCEMENTS
Tualatin Youth Advisory Council Update for October 2017

A. YAC Update 



October 9, 2017 

Youth Participating in Governance 



 Saturday, October 21 
 Crafts, pumpkin carving, pumpkin 

bowling, face painting 
 Proceeds help fund NLC trip in 

March! 

West Coast Giant Pumpkin Regatta 

 



 October 25-28 
 Van Raden 

Community Center 

Haunted House 

 



 October 25-28 
 7:00-10:00pm 
 Van Raden 

Community Center 
 $4 youth/student 
 $5 adult 

Haunted House 

 



   
City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/09/2017  
ANNOUNCEMENTS: West Coast Giant Pumpkin Regatta Announcement

ANNOUNCEMENTS
West Coast Giant Pumpkin Regatta Announcement

A. Pumpkin Regatta Announcement 



Giant Pumpkin Races * 5k 
Regatta Run* Terminator 

Weigh Off * Family 
Entertainment * Pie Eating 

Contests * Costume Contests 
* Crafts * Food * and more! 

Saturday, October 21, 2017 
Lake of the Commons 

10:00am-4:00pm 

Free Admission! 





TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Nicole Morris, Deputy City Recorder

DATE: 10/09/2017

SUBJECT: Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the Work Sessions and Regular
Meetings of September 11 and 25, 2017

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The issue before the Council is to approve the minutes for the Work Sessions and Regular
Meetings of September 11 and 25, 2017.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff respectfully recommends that the Council adopt the attached minutes.

Attachments: City Council Work Session Minutes of September 11, 2017
City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of September 11, 2017
City Council Work Session Minutes of September 25, 2017
City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of September 25, 2017



OFFICIAL MINUTES OF TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION FOR SEPTEMBER 11, 2017 

Present: Mayor Lou Ogden; Councilor Frank Bubenik; Council President Joelle Davis;
Councilor Nancy Grimes; Councilor Paul Morrison; Councilor Jeff DeHaan; Councilor
Robert Kellogg 

Staff
Present:

City Manager Sherilyn Lombos; City Attorney Sean Brady; Police Chief Bill Steele;
Community Services Director Paul Hennon; Planning Manager Aquilla Hurd-Ravich;
Deputy City Recorder Nicole Morris; IS Director Bates Russell; Associate Planner
Charles Benson 

 

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Ogden called the meeting to order at 5:03 p.m.
 

               

1. Regional Food Scraps Policy.   

 
  Matt Korot, Metro Recycling Program Director, presented an overview on the

Regional Food Scraps Policy. He stated food is the primary component for waste
reduction efforts. Metro has decided to work on a resolution targeted at food
scraps for businesses, to begin with. Metro gave direction to move forward with the
following three objectives: require certain businesses to separate their food scraps
for recovery, determine how to efficiently collect and deliver food scraps for
processing, and to secure a local and stable processing facility. The policy would
affect 3,000 businesses with 1,300 businesses already participating in the
program. If the policy is passed it would require local governments inside the Metro
boundary to implement collection programs. Local governments would have to
adopt policy that would meet the regional requirements and performance standards
associated with a food scraps program. Metro’s policy would be implemented in
phases. A breakdown of the 71 affected Tualatin businesses was presented. The
policy process and public reach outline where presented.

Councilor Grimes asked where the current participant’s food scraps are being
taken. Mr. Korot stated most scraps are going to a transfer station in Wilsonville
and then delivered to a compost facility in Benton County. Councilor Grimes asked
if the current facility has enough capacity to have all the businesses come online.
Mr. Korot stated Metro is working to acquire additional facilities that will bring
stability to the processing side of food scraps.

Councilor Grimes asked if there was a cost benefit to businesses participating in
the program. Mr. Korot stated it is difficult to predict numbers and the policy is more
about the greater good for the public.

Councilor Bubenik asked if there is anticipated rate increases that come along with
the program. Mr. Korot stated they can’t estimate rates until a new processor is
secured.

September 11, 2017
1 of 4 

  



Mayor Ogden asked why the program is being implemented before there are
enough processors in place. Mr. Korot stated the region has to demonstrate they
are serious about the program in order to draw processors to the area.

Mayor Ogden asked who provides the technical staff assistance for the
businesses. Mr. Korot stated staff will be provided through the cooperative
agreement Tualatin has with Washington County.

 

2. Mobile Food Unit Ordinance.   

 
  Planning Manager Aquilla Hurd-Ravich and Associate Planner Charles Benson

provided an update on the mobile food unit ordinance. Manager Hurd-Ravich
stated the revisions from the July 10 meeting were made and sent to the interested
party lists. A summary of the project timeline to date was provided. Planner
Benson summarized the public outreach that has been conducted on the draft
ordinance. Draft ordinance revisions to the purpose and applicability, permit
requirements, location standards, site standards, and violations were reviewed.
Manager Hurd-Ravich stated next steps include incorporating feedback from
Council, holding a public hearing, and completing the plan text amendment
process.

Councilor Kellogg asked when regulations for food pods would be discussed.
Manager Hurd-Ravich stated the idea was discussed at the work group and was
decided food pods would need to be a separate design discussion.

Mayor Ogden stated he doesn’t feel the proposed ordinance solves the original
problem the Council sought to fix. He stated in the two years the temporary
ordinance has been in place there has not been any issues with food trucks. He
would like to see the ordinance stand as it currently is today and not adopt any new
regulations.

Councilor DeHaan joined the meeting at 6:08 p.m.

Councilor Bubenik stated Council listened to business owners who do not want
food trucks in the downtown core area. He stated the PuPu Shack would still be
able to operate just not in their current location.

Council President Davis stated she feels the restaurants concerns about the
competition from the food trucks is unrealistic. She would like to see a
permitting/waiver process put into place to allow trucks in the downtown core.

Councilor Grimes asked if the Council did not adopt the ordinance and later
decided to implement a new ordinance if the current food trucks would be
grandfathered in. City Attorney Brady stated if the temporary ordinance stayed in
place the current food trucks would not have grounds to be grandfathered in.

Councilor Bubenik stated he likes the idea of providing waivers as long as the
trucks are not in direct competition with brick and mortar establishments.

Councilor Morrison stated he would like to see the ordinance put in place so
people feel comfortable making investments into businesses in Tualatin.

September 11, 2017
2 of 4 

  



City Manager Lombos stated she has concerns about staff making decisions about
who is competition with who in a waiver process.

Councilor DeHaan stated he is in favor of some sort of permitting process.

City Attorney Brady stated there could be constitutional restraints around a
process regarding competition. The City would need to be careful in how a policy of
that nature would be drafted.

Councilor Morrison stated he would like to pass the ordinance with an exclusion for
the PuPu Shack or with a timeframe for the current trucks to move.

Manager Hurd-Ravich stated a potential solution could be to make food carts a
conditional use in the central core.

Councilor Kellogg stated he would like to move this process forward and have the
item placed on the next business meeting for further discussion.

Council consensus was reached to place the ordinance on the next meeting
agenda.

 

3. Council Rules.   

 
  Mayor Ogden presented his written comments to the Council. 

Councilor Morrison stated there may be some discrepancies when related to the
charter. He requested clarifications on those from the City Attorney.

Councilor Kellogg requested this item be placed on the next regular council
meeting agenda for further discussion.

Council consensus was reached to place the item on the regular meeting of
September 25.

 

4. Proclamation Request.   

 
  The Council considered the request for Constitution Week. The proclamation will

be placed on the regular meeting agenda of September 25.
 

5. Council Meeting Agenda Review, Communications & Roundtable.
 
  None.
 

 

ADJOURNMENT

The work session adjourned at 7:08 p.m.

 

September 11, 2017
3 of 4 

  



Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

____________________________ / Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

____________________________ / Lou Ogden, Mayor
 

September 11, 2017
4 of 4 

  



  

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR
SEPTEMBER 11, 2017 

 

Present: Mayor Lou Ogden; Councilor Frank Bubenik; Council President Joelle Davis;
Councilor Nancy Grimes; Councilor Paul Morrison; Councilor Jeff DeHaan; Councilor
Robert Kellogg 

Staff
Present:

City Manager Sherilyn Lombos; City Attorney Sean Brady; Police Chief Bill Steele;
Community Services Director Paul Hennon; Finance Director Don Hudson; Planning
Manager Aquilla Hurd-Ravich; Deputy City Recorder Nicole Morris; Teen Program
Specialist Julie Ludemann; Parks and Recreation Manager Rich Mueller; IS Director
Bates Russell; Associate Planner Charles Benson 

 

               

A. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance

 
  Mayor Ogden called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m.
 

B. ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

1. Tualatin Youth Advisory Council Update for September 2017   

 
  Members of the Youth Advisory Committee (YAC) presented a PowerPoint on

their latest activities and upcoming events. Members have been selling
concessions at the Movies on the Commons events. Proceeds raised will go
towards attendance at the NLC Conference in March. New member recruitment
will be happening through September. Park After Dark will being on September
15. Upcoming events include participation in the Pumpkin Regatta and the annual
YAC Haunted House.

 

C. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This section of the agenda allows anyone to address the Council regarding any issue not on the
agenda, or to request to have an item removed from the consent agenda. The duration for each
individual speaking is limited to 3 minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers
will be referred to City staff for follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 
  Fred Cooprider and Sahar Petri, Bahais of Tualatin, invited the Council to the

Bahai Celebration on October 22, at the Juanita Pohl Center. They also noted the
community is welcome to attend.

Linda Moholt, Director of the Tualatin Chamber of Commerce, announced the
Strive to Thrive Workshop on September 21 at the Wilsonville Holiday Inn.

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
September 11, 2017
1 of 3 

  



D. CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one vote. The Mayor will ask Councilors if there is anyone
who wishes to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for discussion and consideration. If you
wish to request an item to be removed from the consent agenda you should do so during the Citizen
Comment section of the agenda. The matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered
individually at the end of this Agenda under, Items Removed from the Consent Agenda. The entire
Consent Agenda, with the exception of items removed from the Consent Agenda to be discussed, is
then voted upon by roll call under one motion.

 
  MOTION by Council President Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Nancy

Grimes to adopt the consent agenda.  
  Aye:  Mayor Lou Ogden, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Council President Joelle Davis,

Councilor Nancy Grimes, Councilor Jeff DeHaan, Councilor Paul Morrison,
Councilor Robert Kellogg 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

1. Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the Work Session and Regular Meeting
of August 28, 2017

  

 

E. SPECIAL REPORTS
 

1. Update on Programs and Activities Offered This Summer by the City of Tualatin and
Partners, and a Preview of Fall Programs.

  

 
  Recreation Supervisor Julie Ludemann and Public Services Manager Sarah

Jesudason presented the summer recap and fall preview. The library hosted a
variety of activities this summer including the annual Summer Reading program
and a revamped Summer Teen Volunteer Program. Summer reading at the
Commons hosted events June through August with over 2,000 attendees. The
summer camp program hosted 1,560 kids ages four through eleven. The teen
adventure camp program hosted 648 teens over nine weeks. Concerts and
Movies on the Commons ran July through August and were up nearly 15% in
attendance. ArtSplash was held in July and allowed 52 artists to showcase their
work. Teen volunteers participated in TEAM Tualatin, assisted in the library, and
served on the Youth Advisory Council. The Police Department held National Night
Out in August and hosted 212 students in the Gang Resistance Education and
Training (GREAT) Camp. The Juanita Pohl center hosted over 3,300 participants
in fitness, enrichment, and wellness programs while also serving 4,500 meals.
Recreation partners over the summer included the Tualatin Crawfish Festival,
Tualatin Heritage Center, Browns Ferry Park Kayak and Canoe Rentals,
Willowbrook Arts Camps, the Tigard-Tualatin Summer Lunch Program, and the
YMCA and Skyhawks Camps. Current work on the Parks and Recreation Master
Plan is under way and over 900 people have participated in pop-up activities.
 
Upcoming fall activities at the Library include the One Thousand Books Before
Kindergarten Launch, homework help with Brainfuse, STEAM after-school
program, Hispanic Heritage Month, music programs, and an Adulting 101 Series.
Volunteer Services will be offering volunteer opportunities with the Put Down
Roots in Tualatin event and other library programs including Spruce up the Library
and the Tween Takeover. The Juanita Pohl Center will be hosting the Annual

September 11, 2017
2 of 3 

  



Veterans' Recognition Breakfast, Commit to be Fit!, and Active Aging Week.
Community Services will be hosting the West Coast Giant Pumpkin Regatta and
the YAC Haunted House. Look for more information about all of these events on
the city's website.

 

2. Vision Action Network Presentation   

 
  Glen Montgomery, Executive Director of Vision Action Network (VAN) and

Washington County Thrives presented and update. Mr. Montgomery spoke to the
goals of Washington County Thrives. He stated they feel people need three things
to succeed: a home, a job, and opportunities for early learning. Washington
County currently is lacking some of the essential resources to help people in these
areas. The organization is currently focuses on providing affordable housing.
When families have a stable living situation they are then able to seek out learning
opportunities and in turn boost the local economy. Thrives strategy aims to
increase the return on investment in communities by building on a comprehensive
approach of stable housing, career-track employment, and early learning
employment. Currently the organization is raising awareness of key community
leaders, engaging the county, cities, and businesses, and identifying new
resources the community needs.

Mayor Ogden asked what the Council could do to help the organization in its
mission. Mr. Montgomery stated they are seeking increased awareness from the
Council and City on these issues.

 

F. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COUNCILORS
 
  Councilor Bubenik invited everyone to the Tualatin Historical Society Wine Tasting

and Auction on Friday, September 15, at 6pm. Tickets are available on their
website.

Mayor Ogden requested to have a discussion regarding a contribution to the
League of Oregon Cities Foundation placed on a future work session.

Mayor Ogden reminded everyone of the significance of 9/11.
 

G. ADJOURNMENT
 
  Mayor Ogden adjourned the meeting at 8:24 p.m.
 

 

Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

____________________________ / Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

____________________________ / Lou Ogden, Mayor
 

September 11, 2017
3 of 3 

  



OFFICIAL MINUTES OF TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION FOR SEPTEMBER 25, 2017 

Present: Mayor Lou Ogden; Councilor Frank Bubenik; Council President Joelle Davis;
Councilor Paul Morrison; Councilor Jeff DeHaan; Councilor Robert Kellogg 

Absent: Councilor Nancy Grimes 

Staff
Present:

City Manager Sherilyn Lombos; City Attorney Sean Brady; Police Chief Bill Steele;
Finance Director Don Hudson; Deputy City Recorder Nicole Morris; Assistant to the
City Manager Tanya Williams; Assistant City Manager Alice Cannon; Management
Analyst II Zoe Monahan; Project Engineer Dominique Huffman 

 

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Ogden called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m.
 

               

1. Sustainable City Year Program.   

 
  Management Analyst Zoe Monahan presented information on the Sustainable

Cities Year Program presented by the University of Oregon. Analyst Monahan
stated the program seeks to apply students’ innovation, ingenuity, and fresh
perspectives, to local governments and agencies seeking a transition to a more
sustainable future. This year the University has partnered with Tri-Met to
coordinate several multidisciplinary projects focusing on the Southwest Corridor
Light Rail Project. For Tualatin the Bridgeport Connection Project will be their
focus. They will explore sustainable transportation methods for this connection into
Tualatin. The group’s final presentation will be conducted at an open house in
Tualatin in early December.

 

2. Transient Lodging Tax.   

 
  Finance Director Don Hudson presented information on a local Transient Lodging

Tax (TLT) rate for consideration. He provided background on the tax stating it is
currently a county-wide tax on hotel-motel occupancy originally adopted in 1974
and is currently at a rate of 9%. Director Hudson explained the breakdown of tax
disbursement noting 1% goes to the County Fair, 3% to Tourism Promotion, and a
5% split between the county and the city. Recently the County code has changed
and now allows cities to pass a local TLT rate that would stack on top of the
County’s 9% rate without losing their current allocation. Director Hudson explained
the state statues, rates, and definitions associated with TLT tax. He noted three
cities including Beaverton, Hillsboro, and Tigard have all adopted their own rates.
Projected local revenue rates where shared. Potential uses of the additional
revenues could include trail projects, Tualatin historical Society programs, the
Tualatin Art Walk, Chamber of Commerce activities, and other special events.

Councilor Bubenik asked if a tourism facility could be enclosed in another facility.

September 25, 2017
1 of 3 

  



Director Hudson stated it could but the specified dollars would have to only fund
that portion of the facility.

Councilor Kellogg asked what the average nightly room rate is in Tualatin. Director
Hudson stated staff would need to complete further research.

Mayor Ogden asked for clarification on the definition of tourist and tourist activities.
Director Hudson explained the definition is vague but there is a challenge process
for citizens if concerns arise.

Council President Davis asked if the hoteliers had been talked to about the
potential of a tax. Director Hudson stated that would be the next step if Council
decides to move forward.

Director Hudson stated next steps if the Council wants to move forward would
include meeting with hoteliers and the Washington County Visitors Association,
development of potential uses, and adoption of an ordinance.

Council President Davis asked what the process would be for choosing projects to
fund. Director Hudson stated the Council would have to outline that process.

Councilor DeHaan asked if Washington County has any plans of increasing their
rate. Director Hudson stated he has not heard anything at this time.

Council consensus was reached further explore the implementation of a local TLT
tax rate.

 

3. Allocation of Funds to Outside Agencies.   

 
  Assistant to the City Manager Tanya Williams presented the Outside Agency Grant

applications. She noted $30,000 has been allocated in the budget this year for
grant awards.

Councilor Morrison stated he would like to see guidelines put into place on how
funds get allocated. He specifically would like to see no more than 10% of the
overall funding go to one organization.

Councilor DeHaan would like to consider increasing the overall outside agency
grant funding in the future. 

After review and discussion, Council determined the award amounts to come
forward in a resolution at the next Council meeting.

 

4. Request from the League of Oregon Cities Foundation.   

 
  Mayor Ogden presented a request from the League of Oregon Cities (LOC)

Foundation. He stated the LOC Foundation is an arm of the League that provides
scholarships for elected officials from small cities in Oregon to attend conferences
and trainings that they otherwise would not be able to attend. They are seeking
donations in the amount of five cents per capita. The Mayor suggested the City
donate $1,500 from the Council training budget to go to the LOC Foundation.

September 25, 2017
2 of 3 

  



Council consensus was reached to make the $1,500 donation.
 

5. Council Meeting Agenda Review, Communications & Roundtable.
 
  Councilor Morrison announced that Tualatin Together and Tigard Turns the Tide

will be hosting a Marijuana Initiative event on October 11.
 

 

ADJOURNMENT

The work session adjourned at 6:24 p.m.

 
Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

____________________________ / Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

____________________________ / Lou Ogden, Mayor
 

September 25, 2017
3 of 3 

  



  

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR
SEPTEMBER 25, 2017 

 

Present: Mayor Lou Ogden; Councilor Frank Bubenik; Council President Joelle Davis;
Councilor Paul Morrison; Councilor Jeff DeHaan; Councilor Robert Kellogg 

Absent: Councilor Nancy Grimes 

Staff
Present:

City Manager Sherilyn Lombos; City Attorney Sean Brady; Police Chief Bill Steele;
Finance Director Don Hudson; Planning Manager Aquilla Hurd-Ravich; Deputy City
Recorder Nicole Morris; Assistant to the City Manager Tanya Williams; Assistant City
Manager Alice Cannon; Management Analyst II Zoe Monahan; Associate Planner
Charles Benson 

 

               

A. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance

 
  Mayor Ogden called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.
 

B. ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

1. Proclamation Declaring September 21-27, 2017 as Constitution Week in the City of
Tualatin

  

 
  Councilor Bubenik read the proclamation declaring September 21-27, 2017 as

Constitution Week in the City of Tualatin.
 

 

C. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This section of the agenda allows anyone to address the Council regarding any issue not on the
agenda, or to request to have an item removed from the consent agenda. The duration for each
individual speaking is limited to 3 minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers
will be referred to City staff for follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 
  Cathy Holland, Tualatin Community Police Foundation Board Member, announced

a Rubber Duck Raffle to be held at the Pumpkin Regatta. Tickets are available on
their website. In addition to the raffle they will be selling Tony Dogs to raise funds
for Tony’s Retirement Fund.

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one vote. The Mayor will ask Councilors if there is anyone
who wishes to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for discussion and consideration. If you
wish to request an item to be removed from the consent agenda you should do so during the Citizen
Comment section of the agenda. The matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered
individually at the end of this Agenda under, Items Removed from the Consent Agenda. The entire

September 25, 2017
1 of 6 

  



Consent Agenda, with the exception of items removed from the Consent Agenda to be discussed, is
then voted upon by roll call under one motion.

 
  MOTION by Councilor Robert Kellogg, SECONDED by Council President Joelle

Davis to adopt the consent agenda.  
  Aye:  Mayor Lou Ogden, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Council President Joelle

Davis, Councilor Jeff DeHaan, Councilor Paul Morrison, Councilor Robert
Kellogg 

Other:  Councilor Nancy Grimes (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

1. Consideration of Resolution No. 5338-17 Authorizing the City Manager to
Execute a Revocable Permit to Allow a Fiber Optic Network Connection to Cross
SW Leveton Drive for LAM Research

  

 

E. GENERAL BUSINESS
If you wish to speak on a general business item please fill out a Speaker Request Form and you will
be called forward during the appropriate item. The duration for each individual speaking is limited to 3
minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers will be referred to City staff for
follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 

1. Consideration of Resolution No. 5340-17 a Resolution Authorizing The City
Manager to Apply For and Accept Community Development Block Grant Funds to
Complete Project Design and Construction For the Sagert Street Pedestrian
Connectivity and Enhancement Project

  

 
  Assistant City Manager Alice Cannon, Management Analyst Zoe Monahan, and

Assistant City Engineer Dominique Huffman presented a request for a Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG). Analyst Monahan provided background
information on the CDBG grant. She explained the three competitive program
categories including public facilities, infrastructure improvements, and public
service. The City’s proposal falls under the Infrastructure Improvements category
where there is an estimated $366,129 in funding available. The project falls into
two qualifying census tracts. Engineer Huffman explained the Sagert Street
Pedestrian Connectivity Enhancement project proposal includes designing
construction documents, removal and replacement of sidewalks to standard,
removal and replacement of ADA curb ramps to standard, and the installation of a
rapid flashing beacon. The project is estimated to cost $336,000. MSTIP will match
$50,000, the City will match $75,000, with the CDBG grant total being $211,000.
Analyst Monahan stated staff will present the project in January and a decision will
be made by the committee in February.

Councilor Kellogg asked if the City’s match is cash or in-kind. Engineer Huffman
stated it is in cash from the Road Operating Fund.

Council President Davis asked how many flashing beacons would be installed.
Engineer Huffman stated two beacons would be installed, one facing in each
direction.

Councilor Bubenik explained some of the details the selection committee will be

September 25, 2017
2 of 6 

  



looking for. He offered his insights to staff.
 

  MOTION by Council President Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Jeff
DeHaan to adopt Resolution No. 5340-17 authorizing the City Manager to apply for
and accept Community Development Block Grant Funds to complete project design
and construction for the Sagert Street Pedestrian Connectivity and Enhancement
Project. 

  Aye:  Mayor Lou Ogden, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Council President Joelle
Davis, Councilor Jeff DeHaan, Councilor Paul Morrison, Councilor Robert
Kellogg 

Other:  Councilor Nancy Grimes (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

2. Consideration of Recommendations from the Council Committee on Advisory
Appointments

  

 
  Mayor Ogden thanked the applicant for her service to the committee.
 

  MOTION by Councilor Paul Morrison, SECONDED by Councilor Robert
Kellogg motion to approve the recommendations for the Tualatin Tomorrow Advisory
Committee. 

  Aye:  Mayor Lou Ogden, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Council President Joelle
Davis, Councilor Jeff DeHaan, Councilor Paul Morrison, Councilor Robert
Kellogg 

Other:  Councilor Nancy Grimes (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

3. Consideration of Ordinance No. 1403-17 City of Tualatin Mobile Food Unit
Regulations.

  

 
  Planning Manager Aquilla Hurd-Ravich and Associate Planner Charles Benson

presented an ordinance to adopt mobile food unit regulations. Manager
Hurd-Ravich recapped the project timeline and public outreach to date. She noted
the proposed ordinance would not go into effect until January 1, 2019 to allow staff
time to create the program and go through the appropriate plan text amendment
process. Planner Benson presented the ordinance provisions and draft
components. He spoke to the purpose and applicability, definitions,
permit requirements, operating requirements, location standards, and site
standards.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Cathy Holland, President of the Commercial CIO, spoke in favor of the ordinance.
She stated the current ordinance provides and amenable solution for brick and
mortar restaurants while providing good public policy for mobile food units.

Linda Moholt, Chamber of Commerce Director, spoke in favor of the ordinance as
presented.

September 25, 2017
3 of 6 

  



Joseph Hall, owner of the PuPu Shack, spoke in opposition of the ordinance. He
would like to see the temporary ordinance continue to remain in place. He stated
the proposed ordinance places too heavy of restrictions on mobile food vendors in
Tualatin.

COUNCIL QUESTIONS
Councilor Kellogg asked if there is a county rule that states food units have to
operate on developed lots. Manager Hurd-Ravich stated the main consideration for
developed lots is due to storm water issues.

Councilor Kellogg proposed a changed to Section 9.9.050 1.A to read location “of
the mobile food unit.”

Councilor DeHaan asked why a food truck could not be located within a 100 feet of
a gas station. Manager Hurd-Ravich stated it is due to concerns with propane and
open flames.

Councilor DeHaan asked what the Planning Commission’s recommendations was
on the ordinance. Manager Hurd-Ravich stated a vote on the ordinance is not
under the commission’s purview. Staff has been keeping them updated as the plan
text amendment would go through them.

Council President Davis asked Mr. Hall if he was in favor of the 200 foot buffer. Mr.
Hall stated he is not in favor of the buffer as it is proposed in the ordinance.

COUNCIL DELIBERATION
None. 

 

  MOTION by Council President Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Paul
Morrison for first reading by title only.  

  Aye:  Mayor Lou Ogden, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Council President Joelle
Davis, Councilor Jeff DeHaan, Councilor Paul Morrison, Councilor Robert
Kellogg 

Other:  Councilor Nancy Grimes (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
  MOTION by Council President Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Frank

Bubenik for second reading by title only.  
  Aye:  Mayor Lou Ogden, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Council President Joelle

Davis, Councilor Jeff DeHaan, Councilor Paul Morrison, Councilor Robert
Kellogg 

Other:  Councilor Nancy Grimes (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
  MOTION by Council President Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Paul

September 25, 2017
4 of 6 

  



  MOTION by Council President Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Paul
Morrison to adopt Ordinance No. 1403-17 City of Tualatin Mobile Food Unit
Regulations.

DISUCSSION ON MOTION
Councilor Kellogg thanked the community and business for their work on the
ordinance.

Mayor Ogden stated the ordinance addresses the issues and creates balance, but
he can't support it because the original intent of the review is not being met and
would eliminate the PuPu Shack from operating in its current location.

Councilor DeHaan stated he can’t vote in support of the ordinance because he
doesn’t feel food trucks are an issue in Tualatin.

Councilor Bubenik stated he is favor of the ordinance. He noted since it will not go
into effect until January 1, 2019 it gives current food trucks plenty of time to relocate
and do the appropriate advertising of their new locations.

Councilor Morrison is in favor of the ordinance as it provides certainty to brick and
mortar restaurants and provides a good compromise for both types of businesses.  

  Aye:  Councilor Frank Bubenik, Council President Joelle Davis, Councilor Paul
Morrison, Councilor Robert Kellogg 

Nay:  Mayor Lou Ogden, Councilor Jeff DeHaan 
Other:  Councilor Nancy Grimes (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

4. Consideration of Council Rules   

 
  Discussion on this item began at 6:32 p.m.

Mayor Ogden briefly recapped previous discussion on the Council Rules. He
presented his track changes as attached to the staff report. Discussion amongst
the items was held by the Council and are reflected in the final draft.

Discussion was paused at 6:55 p.m. to begin the official meeting. Discussion
continued at 8:41 p.m.

Due to lack of time, consensus was reached to continue the discussion on the
Mayor’s track changes on November 1. 

 

F. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COUNCILORS
 
  Councilor DeHaan stated Rotary is raising funds for a dental van.

Mayor Ogden stated he attended the GPI Conference last week.
 

G. ADJOURNMENT
 

September 25, 2017
5 of 6 

  



 
  Mayor Ogden adjourned the meeting at 9:30 p.m.
 

 

Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

____________________________ / Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

____________________________ / Lou Ogden, Mayor
 

September 25, 2017
6 of 6 

  



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Nicole Morris, Deputy City Recorder

DATE: 10/09/2017

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5342-17 Awarding Fiscal Year 2017/2018
Outside Agency Grant Funds to Provide Social Services to the Citizens of Tualatin

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The City Council will consider Resolution No. 5342-17 that would award the fiscal year 2017/18
Outside Agency Grant funds to provide social services to the citizens of Tualatin.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution No. 5342-17 awarding the 2017/18
Outside Agency Grants.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
On September 25, 2017, the City Council discussed in work session the disbursements of the
fiscal year 2017/18 Outside Agency Grant funds. Consensus was reached at that meeting to
disperse the funds as follows:

Outside Agency                                                           Amount Awarded
 
Caring Closet                                                                        $2,500
Community Action Organization                                           $5,000
Community Warehouse                                                        $2,500
Family Justice Center of Washington County                       $3,500
Good Neighbor Center                                                          $4,500
Neighbors Nourishing Communities                                      $2,500
Sexual Assault Resource Center                                           $1,000
Tigard-Tualatin Compassion Clinic                                        $1,500
Tigard-Tualatin Family Resource Center                               $4,000
Tualatin School House Food Pantry                                       $3,000

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
Grant funds for the Outside Agency Grants were budgets for Fiscal Year 2017/18 in the amount



Grant funds for the Outside Agency Grants were budgets for Fiscal Year 2017/18 in the amount
of $30,000.

Attachments: Resolution 5342-17



RESOLUTION NO. 5342-17 
 

Resolution No. 5342-17  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION AWARDING FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 OUTSIDE AGENCY 
GRANT FUNDS TO PROVIDE SOCIAL SERVICES TO THE CITIZENS OF 
TUALATIN 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that providing social services is an important 

governmental function; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City does not provide social services directly; and 

 
WHEREAS, other non-profit entities exist that provide social services that serve 

the citizens of the City of Tualatin; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City finds it is most efficient for the City to utilize these entities to 

provide social services to the citizens of Tualatin; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City finds it is in the public interest for the City to grant funds 

directly to non-profit entities in order to provide needed social services; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds the City will receive a direct public benefit from 

the expenditure of these funds. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUALATIN, 

OREGON, that: 
 
Section 1.  The City Council awards the following amounts to the following 

entities as a grant to provide social services to the citizens of the City of Tualatin: 
 

Outside Agency        Amount Awarded 
 
Caring Closet          $2,500 
Community Action Organization       $5,000 
Community Warehouse        $2,500 
Family Justice Center of Washington County     $3,500 
Good Neighbor Center        $4,500 
Neighbors Nourishing Communities      $2,500 
Sexual Assault Resource Center       $1,000 
Tigard-Tualatin Compassion Clinic      $1,500 
Tigard-Tualatin Family Resource Center      $4,000 
Tualatin School House Food Pantry      $3,000 
 

 
Section 2.  The City Manager is authorized to execute grant agreements with the 

entities and amounts established in Section 1 of this resolution. 



Resolution No. 5342-17 Page 2 of 2 

Section 3. This resolution is effective upon adoption. 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of October, 2017. 

 
CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 

 
BY_______________________                                               

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM  ATTEST: 
 
BY_______________________   BY_______________________ 

City Attorney      City Recorder                    



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Bates Russell, IS Director

FROM: Clayton Reynolds, Maintenance Services Div Manager

DATE: 10/09/2017

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5341-17 Authorizing an Intergovernmental
Agreement between the City of Tualatin and Washington County, Oregon for
Fiscal Year 2016 Urban Areas Security Initiative (UASI) Grant Funds

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
This IGA between Washington County and the City of Tualatin is related to the use of UASI
Grant Program funds for addressing the unique planning, organization, equipment, training, and
exercise needs of high-density urban areas to assist in building an enhanced and sustainable
capacity to prevent, protect against, respond to, and recover from acts of terrorism.

This grant supports regional urban area projects selected by the Regional Disaster
Preparedness Organization (RDPO) as vital to the regional preparedness and recovery efforts. 
A portion of these grant funds were earmarked for CERT equipment and supplies. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff seeks City Council approval of the resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute the
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) as it is vital to continuing support of the Tualatin CERT
team endeavors in pursuit of the emergency readiness and response for the City residents and
businesses.   

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
The UASI grant funding for the Portland Urban Area (PUA) was in the amount of
$2,822,000.00. Exhibit A includes the complete budget outline.

Attachments:  Reso 5341-17 - IGA WashCo UASI
IGA 



Resolution No. 5341-17 Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 5341-17 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH WASHINGTON COUNTY TO 
RECEIVE URBAN AREAS SECURITY INITIATIVE (UASI) GRANT FUNDS.  

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Homeland Security’s Urban Areas 
Security Initiative (UASI) program provides grant funds to address the unique planning, 
organization, equipment, training, and exercise needs of high-threat, high-density urban 
areas to assist in building an enhanced and sustainable capacity to prevent, protect 
against, respond to, and recover from acts of terrorism; 

WHEREAS, Washington County has received UASI grant funds; and 

WHEREAS, this Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) is made under ORS 190 
with Washington County for the coordination of activities with Washington County 
consistent with the UASI grant program.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TUALATIN, OREGON, that: 

Section 1.  The City Manager is authorized to execute an IGA with Washington 
County relating to Urban Areas Security Initiative (UASI) Grant Funds, which is attached 
as Exhibit 1 and incorporated by reference.  

Section 2.  This resolution is effective upon adoption. 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED by the City Council this __ day of October, 2017. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

BY _______________________ 
     City Attorney 

CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 

BY _______________________  
Mayor Pro Tem 

ATTEST: 

BY _______________________  
 City Recorder 









































































TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Sean Brady, City Attorney

DATE: 10/09/2017

SUBJECT: Consideration of Ordinance No. 1403-17 Regulating Mobile Food Units and
Creating Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 9-09. 

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Consideration of Ordinance No. 1403-17 Regulating Mobile Food Units and Creating Tualatin
Municipal Code Chapter 9-09.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends Council consider Ordinance No. 1403-17.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Ordinance No. 1403-17 would create new Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 9-09 to regulate
mobile food units, including food trucks and food carts, 

On September 25, 2017, Council considered adopting Ordinance No. 1403-17 to enact Mobile
Food Unit regulations. Council heard testimony from the public and deliberated on the
Ordinance. Council amended the Ordinance in proposed TMC 9-9-050. First and second
readings of the Ordinance were then conducted. A motion to adopt Ordinance No. 1403-17 was
made and seconded and the Council voted 4 to 2 in favor of adoption. Because the vote was
not unanimous, Ordinance No. 1403-17 could not be adopted that night. 

Tualatin Charter Section 35 allows an ordinance to be adopted at one Council meeting if the
ordinance receives the unanimous vote of all Council members present. Otherwise, an
ordinance must be read at two separate Council meetings before being adopted.

As a result, in accordance with Charter Section 35, Ordinance No. 1403-17 is being presented
for reading at a second Council meeting and consideration for final adoption. As presented,
Ordinance No. 1403-17 contains the amendment in proposed TMC 9-9-050 approved by
Council at the September 25, 2017, meeting. If adopted, Ordinance No. 1403-17 would become
effective January 1, 2019.

Attachments: Ord 1403-17 - Mobile Food Unit Ordinance 





ORDINANCE NO. 1403-17 Page 1 of 5 

ORDINANCE NO. 1403-17 

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO MOBILE FOOD UNITS AND CREATING 
TUALATIN MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 9-09. 

WHEREAS, Mobile Food Units allow individual entrepreneurship at a small scale 
and provide unique eating establishments within the City; 

WHEREAS, Council duly considered the impacts of Mobile Food Units on City 
businesses; and 

WHEREAS, the City finds it is in the public interest to enact changes to the 
Tualatin Municipal Code to allow Mobile Food Units to operate in the City, consistent with 
this Ordinance. 

THE CITY OF TUALATIN ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 9-09 is created as follows: 

9-9-010 Purpose and Applicability.  

(1) The purpose of this Chapter is to permit mobile food units to operate on private property 
within the City and establish regulations to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the 
public.  

(2) The requirements of this Chapter do not apply to a mobile food unit that operates: 

(a) as a vendor under an approved City event permit; 

(b) under a street closure permit granted by the City; 

(c) on private property authorized by a Special Event Permit issued under TMC 5-5; 

(d) on private property authorized by a Special Assembly permit issued under TMC 6-
2; 

(e) under the authority of any other permit issued by the City where the City indicates 
approval of a mobile food unit; or 

(f)  at private catering events where the sale or distribution of food is not open to the 
public. 

9-9-020 Definitions. 

(1) “Mobile Food Unit” means a vehicle that is self-propelled or that can be pulled or pushed 
down a sidewalk, street, highway, or water on which food is prepared, processed, or 



ORDINANCE NO. 1403-17 Page 2 of 5 

converted, or which is used in selling and dispensing food to the public. Mobile Food Units 
include, but are not limited to, food trucks, food carts, and pushcarts.  

(2) “Person” means individuals, corporations, associations, firms, partnerships, limited liability 
companies, and joint stock companies. 

(3) “Pushcart” means a non-motorized cart designed to be pushed or pulled by a person. 

(4) “Site” means a lot or parcel of property on which a mobile food unit is permitted to 
operate. 

9-9-030 Mobile Food Unit Permit Required. 

(1) Any person wanting to operate a mobile food unit must obtain a City of Tualatin Mobile 
Food Unit Permit prior to operating a mobile food unit within the City. 

(2) An applicant for a Mobile Food Unit Permit must provide the following information to the 
City:  

(a) the name and contact information of the mobile food unit owner; 

(b) the name and contact information of the mobile food unit operator; 

(c) the specific location of where the mobile food unit intends to operate and the 
intended duration of operation; 

(d) the name, contact information, and proof of consent from the owner of the property 
where the mobile food unit intends to operate; 

(e) proof of a City of Tualatin business license; and 

(f) proof that establishes the person has obtained all required health and sanitary 
licenses from the State of Oregon and Washington or Clackamas Counties, as 
applicable. 

(3) If the applicant shows proof satisfactory to the City that the application criteria have been 
met, the City will grant the Mobile Food Unit Permit.  

(4) If the City denies the Mobile Food Unit Permit, the City will notify the applicant in writing of 
the reasons for the denial. An applicant may correct the deficiency or appeal the denial. 

(5) An applicant may appeal a denial of a Mobile Food Unit Permit to the City Manager by 
filing a request for review. The request for review must contain a copy of the denial notice, a 
request for a hearing or request for written review without a hearing, and a statement setting 
forth the reason(s) that the denial of the Mobile Food Permit was in error. The City Manager, 
or designee, will set the matter for a hearing and allow the applicant to present evidence and 
argument to support the applicant’s position. The City Manager must make a written decision 



ORDINANCE NO. 1403-17 Page 3 of 5 

within 30 days of the conclusion of the hearing. The City Manager’s decision is final on the 
matter. 

(6) A person granted a Mobile Food Unit Permit must notify the City of any changes in the 
information provided in the Mobile Food Unit application within 30 days of the change, and 
update such information annually.    

9-9-040 Operating Requirements. 

(1) A person operating a mobile food unit must comply with all applicable policies and 
regulations set forth by the Tualatin Municipal Code and the Tualatin Development Code, 
including but not limited to all traffic laws and parking regulations. 

(2) A person operating a mobile food unit must comply with all health, safety, and 
environmental laws, including but not limited to proper disposal of cooking waste and 
wastewater. 

(3) A mobile food unit must have wheels and the wheels must not be removed. 

9-9-050 Location Standards. 

(1) Mobile food units are allowed to operate in the following planning districts: 

(a) CO – Commercial Office – except a mobile food unit cannot operate in the CO 
planning district if the location of the mobile food unit is within 200 feet of the Central 
Commercial (CC) planning district; 

(b) CR - Recreational Commercial; 

(c) MC - Medical Center; 

(d) ML - Light Manufacturing; 

(e) MG - General Manufacturing; 

(f) MP - Manufacturing Park; 

(g) MBP - Manufacturing Business Park; and 

(h) IN – Institutional. 

(2) Mobile food units are prohibited to operate within 100 feet of a gas station. 

9-9-060 Site Standards. 

(1) Mobile food units, including all items associated with the operation, must not obstruct 



ORDINANCE NO. 1403-17 Page 4 of 5 

pedestrian pathways, driveways, drive aisles, sidewalks, streets, or public rights of way, or 
otherwise create a traffic or safety hazard. 

(2) Mobile food unit operators must provide garbage and recycling for patrons. 

(3) Mobile food units must have self-contained water, sewer, and electrical systems, as 
applicable. 

(4) Mobile food units are prohibited from connecting to public or private water, sewer, and 
electrical utilities. 

(5) Mobile food units must operate and park only within an existing paved parking lot or other 
hard-surfaced area. 

(6) Only one mobile food unit is allowed to be present at a site at any one time. 

9-9-070 Pushcarts. 

(1) Pushcarts are allowed to operate in the following planning districts: 

(a) CC- Central Commercial; 

(b) CG -  General Commercial; 

(c) ML - Light Manufacturing; 

(d) MG - General Manufacturing; and 

(e) MP - Manufacturing Park.  

(2) Pushcarts must comply with the following standards: 

(a) be no larger than six feet in length; 

(b) not locate within 200 feet of a restaurant or fruit and vegetable market without 
written consent from the proprietor of the restaurant or market; 

(c) not conduct business on public sidewalks without obtaining a permit from the City; 

(d) not operate on a private sidewalk, except by permission of the property owner; and 

(f) comply with the Site Standards in TMC 9-9-060. 

9-9-080 Joint and Several Liability.   
Any person who owns a mobile food unit will be held jointly and severally liable with any 
person that operates the mobile food unit for any violation of this Chapter.  



ORDINANCE NO. 1403-17 Page 5 of 5 

9-9-090 Violations.  

(1) Any person who violates any provision of this Chapter commits a civil infraction and is 
subject to a fine of up to $1,000. Each violation, and each day that a violation continues, is a 
separate civil infraction. 

(2) The civil infraction procedures in TMC Chapter 7-01 apply to the prosecution of any 
violation of this Chapter.  

(3) In addition to prosecution for a civil infraction, a person found in violation of any provision 
of this Chapter may have a Mobile Food Unit Permit revoked.  

(a) Prior to revocation, the City Manager, or designee, must provide the person with 
written notice of the alleged violation and an opportunity to rebut the allegations.   

(b) The City Manager, or designee, will set the matter for a hearing and allow the 
applicant to present evidence and argument.  

(c) Upon conclusion of the hearing, the City Manager, or designee, must make a 
written decision within 30 days of the conclusion of the hearing. The City Manager’s, or 
designee’s, decision is final on the matter. 

Section 2. Severability. Each section of this ordinance, and any part thereof, is 
severable. If any part of this ordinance is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
the remainder of this ordinance remains in full force and effect. 

Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance is effective January 1, 2019. 

Adopted by the City Council this ___ day of October, 2017. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

BY _______________________ 
     City Attorney 

CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 

BY _______________________  
 Mayor Pro Tem 

ATTEST 

BY _______________________  
 City Recorder 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Sean Brady, City Attorney

DATE: 10/09/2017

SUBJECT: Consideration of Ordinance No. 1404-17 to Extend the Temporary Mobile Food
Unit Regulations to December 31, 2018

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Consideration of Ordinance No. 1404-17 to Extend the Temporary Mobile Food Unit
Regulations to December 31, 2018.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends Council consider Ordinance No. 1404-17.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
On June 13, 2016, Council adopted Ordinance No. 1393-16 to temporarily allow mobile food
units to operate in the City. On December 12, 2016, Council adopted Ordinance No. 1398-16 to
extend the expiration date of the temporary regulations to December 31, 2017. Ordinance No.
1404-17 would extend the mobile food unit temporary regulations to December 31, 2018.

On this same night, Council is considering adopting permanent mobile food unit regulations,
which, if adopted, will go into effect on January 1, 2019. Adopting Ordinance No. 1404-17 would
allow the temporary regulations to remain until the permanent regulations go into effect. 

Attachments: Ord 1404-17 - Temp Food Cart Regulation Extension



Ordinance No. 1404-17 Page 1 of 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1404-17 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 1393-16 TO CONTINUE TO 
TEMPORARILY ALLOW MOBILE FOOD UNITS TO OPERATE IN THE CITY OF 
TUALATIN. 

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2016, Council adopted Ordinance No. 1393-16 to 
temporarily allow mobile food units to operate in the City; 

WHEREAS, Section 6 of Ordinance No. 1393-16 provided for expiration of the 
ordinance on December 31, 2016, unless the Council repealed or extended the date; 

WHEREAS, on December 12, 2016, Council adopted Ordinance No. 1398-16 to 
extend the expiration date to December 31, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, Council wishes to extend the expiration date of Ordinance No. 1393-
16 to December 31, 2018. 

THE CITY OF TUALATIN ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Expiration Date Extended. Section 6 of Ordinance No. 1393-16, 
adopted June 13, 2016, is amended to read as follows: 

This ordinance automatically expires and is to be deemed repealed on December 
31, 2018, unless sooner repealed or extended by Council ordinance.  

Section 2.  Ordinance Not Codified. Ordinance No. 1393-16 and this ordinance 

are known as Tualatin’s Temporary Mobile Food Unit Regulations and, being 

temporary, will not be codified in the Tualatin Municipal Code. 

ADOPTED by the City Council this __ day of October, 2017. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

BY _______________________ 
     City Attorney 

CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 

BY _______________________  
Mayor Pro Tem 

ATTEST: 

BY _______________________  
 City Recorder 


	Agenda
	AI_2508_Tualatin Youth Advisory Council Update
	ATT_A. YAC Update
	Slide Number 1
	West Coast Giant Pumpkin Regatta
	Haunted House
	Haunted House

	AI_2509_West Coast Giant Pumpkin Regatta Announcement
	ATT_A. Pumpkin Regatta Announcement
	14th Annual �West Coast �Giant Pumpkin �Regatta
	Slide Number 2

	AI_2513_Consideration of Approval of the Minutes 
	ATT_City Council Work Session Minutes of September 11, 2017
	ATT_City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of September 11, 2017
	ATT_City Council Work Session Minutes of September 25, 2017
	ATT_City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of September 25, 2017
	AI_2514_2017_2018 OUTSIDE AGENCY GRANT FUNDS
	ATT_Resolution 5342-17
	AI_2510_Resolution Authorizing an IGA between Washington County, Oregon and The City of Tualatin 
	ATT_Reso 5341-17 - IGA WashCo UASI
	ATT_IGA 
	AI_2512_Ordinance No. 1403-17 An Ordinance Relating to Mobile Food Units and Creating Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 9-09
	ATT_Ord 1403-17 - Mobile Food Unit Ordinance 
	AI_2511_Ordinance to Continue to Temporarily Allow Mobile Food Units to Operate in the City of Tualatin
	ATT_Ord 1404-17 - Temp Food Cart Regulation Extension

